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As part of the 2010 Renewable RFP, ESI has posted this Appendix D which contains a list of preliminary due diligence requests.  ESI will require Bidders who intend to submit a proposal(s) originating from a Renewable Energy Resource (“RER”) to provide a comprehensive response to each question accordingly and as applicable.  Failure to provide such a response will result in an increased risk of a Bidder’s proposal being deemed non-conforming and rejected from further consideration.  The RFP Web Portal will not be used to collect the response to this Appendix D.  Bidders are required to submit their responses to the questions below in writing in such a way that clearly identifies the question to which each response pertains, and then provide the complete set of responses via electronic mail or express delivery to the RFP Administrator by 5:00 pm CPT February 3, 2011.  
The following questions pertain to all Renewable Energy Resources proposed.  For a question not applicable to the Bidder’s proposed renewable technology or facility, please answer N/A.
1. Bidder Experience

1.1. Provide a detailed description of Bidder’s background and experience 

1.1.1. Include any affiliated companies, parent company, holding subsidiaries or predecessor companies Include resumes of key personnel dedicated to the project

1.1.2. Provide one (1) or more references of projects completed and/or in development
1.1.2.1. Include details of project schedules, historical performance and operating history
2. Developmental Renewable Resource Project Status

2.1. Developmental Status (for proposed projects to be or being developed or that will be modified for purposes related to this proposal)

2.1.1. For existing resources that have been or will be re-tooled for eligibility as defined by the LPSC Pilot Program and approved Implementation Plan, please provide;

2.1.1.1. Date of re-tooling or modification (Note: re-tooling must occur on or after January 1, 2010)

2.1.1.2. The percentage and invested cost (Section 2.2 below) at the time of the project re-launch. (Note:  The invested cost to modify or re-tool an existing resource must be at least 80% of the generation equipment’s appraised value.  The other 20% or less of the appraised value at re-launch can be made up of previously used electric generation equipment and associated infrastructure.)

2.1.1.3. Provide documentation to support the modified or re-tooled resource eligibility under Section 5.2 of the LPSC approved Implementation Plan.

2.1.2. Provide a detailed status of the project that includes the following elements:

2.1.2.1. Engineering & Design.  Please provide information related to the completeness of the engineering and design of the proposed project.  Please provide quantitative indications such as percent complete, dollars expended to date, man-hours expended to date, etc.

2.1.2.2. Project Schedule.  Please provide information related to the status of the project schedule, including all phases of the project.  Please indicate the degree of detail developed to date, in accordance with the following:

2.1.2.2.1. Level 1, Executive Summary, includes major milestones, highlights major project activities typical of feasibility, preliminary or conceptual design studies;

2.1.2.2.2. Level 2, Management Summary, includes the level 1 information expanded to include activities by area or major item of capital equipment typically developed prior to final project funding approval;

2.1.2.2.3. Level 3, Project Coordination Schedule, includes details of engineering, procurement, construction, testing, and commissioning sufficient to coordinate the activities of subcontractors; and

2.1.2.2.4. Level 4, Execution Schedule, detailed working level schedule with the detailed activities to be accomplished by the workforce.

2.1.2.3. Please provide a Level 1 schedule as described above if available.
2.2. Capital Cost
2.2.1. Please provide a description of the current capital cost estimate for the project include the following:

2.2.1.1. Indication of the accuracy of the estimate, for example +/- 25%.

2.2.1.2. How the estimate was developed, i.e., third party engineering firm, in-house, vendor supplied bids, etc.  At a minimum, estimates should account for the following:

(i) Mechanical and electrical equipment

(ii) Instrumentation and controls

(iii) Piping

(iv) Miscellaneous buildings and structural steel

(v) Site work and foundations

(vi) Retrofit allowance (if applicable)

(vii) Sales tax

(viii) Engineering costs

(ix) Indirect costs

(x) Spare parts

(xi) Escalation and AFUDC/IDC 

2.3. Site 

2.3.1. Please describe the status of the proposed project site including the following:

2.3.1.1. Site control – Is the proposed site under the legal control of the Bidder and if so, what legal form?  If the site is not currently under the legal control of the Bidder, describe the process required to gain control and provide an assessment of the risk related to gaining control of the site.

2.3.1.2. Has the proposed site been formally assessed for risks related to environmental contamination, habitat or other pre-existing conditions that may render the site unusable?  Please provide the executive summary of any formal reports.  If the site has not been formally assessed, what supporting facts or actions provide assurance that the site is fit for the intended use?

2.3.1.3. Please indicate what construction related surveying or testing has been performed at the site.  Please summarize the results.

2.3.2. Please describe the status of any necessary site infrastructure including but not limited to:

2.3.2.1. Water supply

2.3.2.2. Water discharge

2.3.2.3. Transportation access for construction activities and ongoing operations

2.3.2.4. Lay down area access for construction

2.3.2.5. Fuel receiving, storage and processing area

2.3.2.6. Ash storage or disposal (or other solid waste)

2.3.3. Please provide the following details regarding the proposed site:

2.3.3.1. Please describe the exact location, i.e., street address or latitude and longitude if in a rural location.

2.3.3.2. Provide a property plat if available

2.3.3.3. Acreage as planned

2.3.3.4. Other available acreage adjacent to the site

2.4. Engineering
2.4.1. Please provide any engineering data currently available for the project including the following if applicable to the proposed project:

2.4.1.1. Project design basis

2.4.1.2. Site layout or general arrangement diagrams

2.4.1.3. Heat & material balances (including water balance)

2.4.1.4. Process flow diagrams

2.4.1.5. Electrical single line diagrams

2.4.1.6. Auxiliary power calculations

2.4.1.7. Any engineering reports
2.5. EPC Contract Status
2.5.1. Please describe the status of any existing contract(s) for engineering, procurement and construction of the facility including the following details:

2.5.1.1. Contracting parties

2.5.1.2. Type of contract or contract structure (i.e., lump sum turn-key, EPCM, multiple prime, target price, time & materials, etc.)

2.5.1.3. Date of execution or expected date of execution if currently in negotiation.

2.5.2. If the contract(s) are not currently in place or in negotiation, please describe the intended process for securing the necessary services.
3. Plant and Equipment

3.1. Please describe the plant and equipment to be utilized is as much detail as available, including but not limited to the following:  (If the procurement of the plant and equipment is not yet completed, please provide details of the procurement plans.)
3.1.1. For each piece of major equipment (prime movers, boilers, turbines, generator transformers, etc) provide the make, model, and performance rating.
3.1.2. Provide the rational for the selection of the major equipment including a description of the procurement process used to acquire the equipment.
3.1.3. Provide an equipment list for other equipment to be utilized at the site.
4. Operations and Maintenance

4.1. Please describe the operation and maintenance plans for the project including the following:
4.1.1. Operating party (self-operated, third-party contract, etc.)
4.1.2. Provide the qualifications of the operating party if not included in question 1.1 above.
4.1.3. If operated under contract, please provide a description of the contract, including term, scope, pricing structure, liability provisions, etc.
4.1.4. Please describe any contracts for maintenance, not performed by the operating party.
4.2. Please provide the anticipated major maintenance schedule for the project by year for the life of the project or anticipated PPA term if not life of unit.
4.3. For an existing project, please provide a detailed operations and maintenance history including;
4.3.1. Monthly production statistics up to 5 years
4.3.2. Annual planned outage hours
4.3.3. Annual forced outage hours or equivalent forced outage hours

4.3.4. Please supply any additional detail to support the existing project’s ability to deliver under the proposal.
4.4. For a developmental project, please provide;
4.4.1. Historical hourly generation profile data for at least two (2) recent years using established data measurement equipment at or near the site of the proposed resource.  A template is posted to the RFP Website for Bidders to use in response to this requirement.  
4.4.1.1. Explain the source of information, resource data measurement method used, assumptions for wake losses, line losses, etc. and location where the data was measured.  Please supply any additional detail to support the developmental project’s ability to deliver under the proposal.
4.5. Capacity-Related Benefits;
4.5.1. Any benefit associated with the capacity of the RER allocated to Buyer, including any capacity credit or similar right or benefit, shall exclusively and solely accrue to and be owned by Buyer.  Bidders should indicate whether the technology is eligible for a capacity credit and provide the basis of that belief.  
4.5.2. Bidders should describe any studies or other actions needed to qualify the RER for capacity-related benefits.  Bidders should also describe the status and any results of any such actions.  All costs required for any capacity qualification will be borne by Seller and should be considered in the Energy Price offered by Bidder.  

4.6. For geothermal projects with geothermal-derived methane gas, please provide;
4.6.1. The percentage usage of methane gas and geothermal for generation. (Note: per the Commission’s approved Implementation Plan, generation from the resource must be supplied from at least 51% of geothermal)

4.6.2. Please provide any geological resource data to substantiate/qualify the resource as an eligible geothermal resource with derived-methane.

4.6.3. What equipment will be used to monitor the percentage usage of methane gas versus geothermal?

4.6.4. Please supply any additional detail to support the methane/geothermal project’s ability to deliver meeting its percentage requirements under the proposal.
4.7. Other Commitments
4.7.1. If applicable, provide a detailed description of any and all existing or future commitments of energy, capacity and other capacity-related benefits, ancillary services and RECs and other environmental attributes of the RER, including any existing agreement with ESI or any Entergy Operating Company or, for any Bidder that is a QF, with any third party to fulfill an existing host load requirement
5. Transmission

5.1. Interconnection

5.1.1. All RERs currently interconnected, or in the process of becoming interconnected, with the Entergy Transmission System are responsible for complying with Entergy’s OATT, which is administered by the ICT pursuant to FERC Order No. 2003-A, including the Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement and Standard Large Generator Interconnection Procedures, or any successor requirements in effect.  If interconnecting to other utilities or third party systems, other standards may be applicable.
5.1.2. Bidders will be required to provide the RFP Administrator with a copy of the completed LGIP, SGIP, and any other applicable application forms by the proposal submission deadline.

5.1.3. Provide any information regarding land options, land purchase agreements, permits, etc required to complete the installation of the interconnection facilities (i.e. transmission or distribution line rights-of-way).

5.1.4. What is the approximate distance to the nearest substation location and voltage level of the developmental resource?

5.1.5. Please provide the status and details of the request (interconnection point, requested and (if known) granted (i.e. PMAX) capacity, network vs. energy only, etc.) and the associated interconnection queue number, if any.  

5.1.6. Have results of the interconnection study been provided?

5.1.7. Has an interconnection agreement for the RER been executed?

5.2. Transmission to Delivery Point

5.2.1. Please provide the status and details (source and sink, requested and (if known) granted capacity, firm vs. non-firm, network vs. point-to-point, etc.) of any transmission request that would be required for the firm transmission or transfer of power from the RER to the Delivery Point on the Entergy Transmission System and the associated transmission reservation queue number.  

5.2.2. For resources located outside of the Entergy balancing authority, has a transmission study outside the Entergy System been initiated for the RER?  If so, Bidder is required to provide a reasonably detailed summary of the results. 
5.2.3. For resources located outside of the Entergy balancing authority, has a transmission service or related agreement for any service from the RER to the Delivery Point on the Entergy Transmission System been executed?  Please describe any required and/or optional transmission upgrades for service outside of the Entergy System that have been identified for the RER and the expected timeframe and estimated cost for completion of each such upgrade.
5.3. Transmission beyond Delivery Point

5.3.1. Please provide the status and details (source and sink, requested and (if known) granted capacity, type of transmission requested, etc.) of any transmission request for the transmission or transfer of power from the RER that could be used to qualify the RER as a firm network resource on the Entergy System and that Bidder would be willing to release to Buyer if the parties enter into a transaction.  

5.3.2. Has a transmission study for service inside the Entergy System been initiated for the RER?  If so, Bidder is required to provide to Buyer a reasonably detailed summary of the results.  

5.3.3. Has a transmission service or related agreement for the transmission or transfer of power in the Entergy System from the RER been executed?  Please describe any required and/or optional transmission upgrades for service inside the Entergy System that have been identified for the RER and the expected timeframe and estimated cost for completion of each such upgrade.  
6. Fuel Supply & Transportation (Proposals that require fuel supply)
6.1. Please describe the fuel supply arrangements that have been procured or describe the plans for procuring fuel including the following details:

6.1.1. Sources of supply

6.1.2. Pricing terms

6.1.3. Term of Contracts

6.1.4. Firmness of Service

6.1.5. Fuel replacement

6.1.6. Counterparties

6.1.7. Please supply copies of any existing fuel agreements

6.2. What mode(s) of fuel transport will supply the facility?

6.2.1. Have transportation agreements been executed?  If so, please a copy of the agreement(s).  If not, when is this activity expected to be completed? 

6.2.2. For planned or executed transportation services, provide the identity of the transporter, and the area of service.

6.2.3. Do easement agreements need to be executed?  If so, please list all easement agreements that are expected to be executed.

6.2.4. Proposals should include fuel production forecasts.  If applicable, the fuel production forecast should include any related decay rate (for example: landfill gas production).

6.3. Please describe any assurances planned in order to protect the facility from fuel curtailments during severe conditions such as hurricanes and other extreme weather conditions.

6.4. Define limitations of fuel delivery which may limit the operation of the generating facility between its minimum and maximum.

6.5. Define any applicable state and local taxes which apply to the fuel(s) planned to be in use at the facility.

6.6. Will the generating unit(s) be designed with dual fuel capability?  If so, describe the type of fuels that can be combusted and clarify any operating restrictions placed on the unit(s).

6.7. If the generating facility consists of more than one generating unit, will each unit have separate fuel equipment?

6.8. Provide the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) primary and alternative fuel quality design requirements for the generating unit(s) to be installed.

6.9. Describe the fuel storage capacity, reclaim capability and fuel blending capability at each storage site

6.10. Describe the inventory policy for the facility and state how much is typically maintained.

6.11. List the inventory handling and storage facilities and specify capacity for each.
6.12. Please provide the gas quality specifications and pressures.

7. Environmental 

7.1. Land/Groundwater

7.1.1. Have the previous land uses for the facility/site been identified?  If so, please list those uses or provide the supporting information.

7.1.2. Are there any potentially contaminated activities at nearby facilities/sites that have been identified?  If so, please list and describe those identified.

7.1.3. Has an Environmental Impact Study and/or Environmental Site Assessment been conducted for the facility/site?  If so, please provide a copy of the study/assessment.

7.1.4. Provide the number of groundwater monitoring or production wells at the facility/site and provide copies of state registrations for each well. 
7.1.5. Does documentation exist on the details of the geological and hydro geological nature of the soil and groundwater underneath the facility/site?  If so, please provide the supporting information.
7.1.6. Has a site certificate been obtained for the facility/site?  If so, please provide a copy of the certificate.

7.1.7. Has a wetland survey been complete for the proposed site?  Have any potential wetlands been identified on the property?  Please provide a copy of any wetland surveys which have been completed (including desktop reviews and on-site surveys).

7.2. Permits

7.2.1. Provide a list of all environmental permits required by the Owner or any of its affiliates and a detailed timeline for obtaining those permits.  Please provide a copy of any permits received for the project to date.

7.2.2. Are there any current activities or uses at the facility/site requiring any permit/registrations for which no permit/registrations has been sought or obtained?  If so, please list the activities and required permit(s).

7.3. Air/Noise

7.3.1. Has the site or facility been evaluated to determine air permitting concerns or needs related to construction, modification or a change in operations required for the renewable resource project?  If so, state any special concerns or limitations and note whether any air permitting activity has been undertaken by the Owner or submitted to any government agency.

7.3.2. What is the national Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NAAQS”) attainment status for the project region, on a pollutant basis for all criteria pollutants? 

7.3.3. What are the anticipated or current controls for air emissions and noise?

7.3.4. Have the anticipated hourly maximum and annual emissions of NOx, SO2, CO, CO2, VOC, PM2.5 and PM10 (as applicable, and any other emission/pollutant for which a permit will be required) been determined?  If so, please provide the emission rates consistent with the reporting requirements of the permit application.

7.3.5. What are the OEM design emission rates for NOx, SO2, CO, CO2, VOC, PM2.5 and PM10 (as applicable, and any other emission/pollutant for which a permit will be required) for the RER prior to any planned,  required or designed-in-place emission controls?  What are the OEM design emission rates for NOx, SO2, CO, CO2, VOC, PM2.5 and PM10 for the RER in consideration of any planned or designed-in-place emission controls?

7.3.6. For existing facilities, have there been any noise surveys (identifying on and off-site impacts) or modeling completed?  If so please provide the results.

7.4. Water/Tanks

7.4.1. Has a compliance plan been developed to meet Federal 316(b) regulations, if applicable?  If so, please provide a copy of the compliance plan.

7.4.2. What is the anticipated source and estimated daily usage of water at this facility?  Are there any state usage fees or taxes associated with the water source?

7.4.3. Has a water supply source been identified?  If so please provide and describe the supply type.

7.4.4. Are identified water source(s) capable of supplying the maximum design requirements of the facility?

7.4.5. What is the daily wastewater discharge rate in mgd?

7.5. Waste

7.5.1. Describe the type and disposal management method for wastes generated or anticipated to be generated at the location.

7.6. Compliance (applicable to brownfield developmental sites or existing facilities, except where noted.)
7.6.1. Where are copies of any facility or site environmental audit reports maintained, including results and corrective actions?  This would include audits conducted internally and externally by federal or state agencies.

7.6.2. Have there been any compliance actions as a result of prior environmental audit findings?
7.6.3. Has the facility/site received any complaints from governmental or citizen groups concerning environmental matters involving the Owner or any of its affiliates?  (greenfield development proposals prepare to respond as well) 
7.6.4. Does the Bidder/Owner have (i) an environmental policy or statement of environmental commitment; and (ii) an environmental management system?  (greenfield development proposals prepare to respond as well).  If so, please provide a copy of the policy(s).

7.7. Operations (applicable to brownfield sites or existing facilities, except where noted.)
7.7.1. Are there any proposed or pending environmental regulatory changes that would affect the plant operating status?  Will facility equipment changes be required?  If so, please list and describe each pending change.

7.7.2. Are there any environmental authorizations that (i) limit production or throughput; or (ii) would render it necessary to increase significantly the volume of production or throughput at the facility?  (greenfield development proposals prepare to respond as well)

7.7.3. Have there been any discontinued operations of the Owner and any of its affiliates at the location of the facility/site? 

7.7.4. Has an assessment been made to determine if any material capital expenditures or material expenses need to be incurred to comply with any existing environmental regulations?  (greenfield development proposals prepare to respond as well) 
7.7.5. Has an assessment been made to determine if any material capital expenditures or material expenses need to be incurred to comply with any environmental regulations that have been proposed (whether in preliminary or final form) but have not become effective?  (greenfield development proposals prepare to respond as well)

7.8. Environmental Attributes
7.8.1. Describe the environmental attributes (and associated renewable portfolio standard or other renewable energy, emissions reduction or reporting rights program) for which its proposed RER is eligible as of the date of its proposal (the “Guaranteed Environmental Attributes”). 
8. Project Structure and Finance

8.1. Provide an overview of the projected ownership structure for the project prior to and following commercial operation.

8.2. A summary of the Bidder’s/Developer’s plan for structuring and funding the project financing.

8.3. Bidder’s plan for meeting the credit/collateral requirements outlined in the RFP.

8.4. For project development-based proposals, Seller should describe with specificity its proposed collateral or security postings throughout the development phase (including amounts or means of determining the amounts, type(s), and other relevant information), interim development milestones, consequences for failing to meet an interim milestone, target commercial operation date, delay damages, final deadline for achieving commercial operation (which, if not met, will trigger a Buyer termination right), and Buyer’s step-in and lien rights.
8.5. Form of collateralization Bidder or Bidder’s credit support provider intends to offer for purposes of meeting the RFP credit and collateral requirements.

8.6. List of any plant-specific debt instruments; credit agreements, indentures, letters of credit, reimbursement agreements, guarantees, indemnity or assumption agreements and agreements relating to contingent obligations and any amendments thereto; security or pledge agreements and any agreements or instruments evidencing a lien or encumbrance on or other right with respect to any of the assets of the plant.

8.7. Pro-forma financial statements for the Bidder’s project and audited financial statements for the Bidder and/or the Bidder’s credit support provider; including balance sheet, income statement and cash flow along with the long-term debt structure.  Lien information that might impact the credit worthiness of the Bidder and/or the Bidder’s credit support provider. 

8.7.1. Proposal must include the following information for the Bidder and any entity that Bidder proposes as a credit support provider on its behalf (“Credit Support Provider”):

8.7.1.1. Type of Business

· Corporation

· Limited Liability Company

· Partnership

· Other (describe)
8.7.1.2. Organization

· Legal Corporate Name

· Street Address

· City, State, Zip Code

· Dun & Bradstreet Number

· Federal Tax ID Number
· Beneficial Ownership

· List of Executives and Directors
8.7.1.3. Credit Contact

· Name

· Title

· Phone Number

· Email Address
8.7.1.4. For Corporation/Limited Liability Companies

· Date and State of Incorporation/Registration

· Street Address

· City, State, Zip Code

8.7.1.5. For General Partnerships

· Name of General Partner

· Address of General Partner/Registered Agent

· City, State, Zip Code
8.7.1.6. Most recent credit rating as determined by Moody’s and/or S&P (if any)
8.7.1.7. Most recent two (2) fiscal years and current fiscal year quarterly audited financial statements and accompanying notes.  Please indicate which statements below are being submitted.

· 10-K

· 8-K

· 10-Q

· Other (describe)

(Note that if financial information is consolidated with other entities, all data related to the Bidder or Credit Support Provider should be extracted and submitted as separate documents by the Bidder.)
8.8. Copies of any material contracts/commitments not otherwise requested and any amendments thereto.

8.9. A list of any pending claims, actions, disputes or other proceedings currently pending or threatened against the project.
8.10. Copies of all bankruptcy court orders, including the order discharging the project and debtor from the bankruptcy proceedings.

8.11. Any tax abatement agreements with state or local authorities and any amendments thereto.

8.12. Documents related to any formal or informal property tax protests, litigation filed, related correspondence, legal opinions received, and judicial or administrative decisions rendered during the last ten years and year-to-date, and current status of any such proceedings
8.13. Copies of any formal or informal property tax agreements (i.e. PILOT, TIP, etc.) with state or local authorities in force during the preceding five years, or effective in the current year or succeeding years.
8.14. List of all applicable tax jurisdictions, tax rates, millage rates, assessment ratios, current equalization ratio.

8.15. If applicable, describe how the Federal production tax credit established pursuant to Section 45 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (“PTC”) would apply to the Renewable Energy Resource included in the proposal and for what duration.
8.16. If applicable, describe how the Federal investment tax credit (“ITC”) established pursuant to Section 48 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code would apply to the Renewable Energy Resource included in the proposal.
8.17. Describe any other awards, grants, special tax treatment or credits, or subsidies that are or may be available to the Renewable Energy Resource.  Describe the subsidies, identify any critical schedule deadlines, and indicate the anticipated likelihood of the Bidder and/or the Renewable Energy Resource receiving such subsidies.
8.18. Explicitly identify in their proposals the economic and other impacts to the Renewable Energy Resource in the event that a subsidy is not received.  All Bidders proposing generating facilities that are dependent on PTC, ITC, and/or other subsidies and tax credits should provide separate prices in their proposals, with and without the impact of the PTC, ITC, and/or such other subsidies and tax credits.
8.19. List of real estate and related facilities, both owned and leased, with legal description.
8.20. List of all easements, right-of-way, or other agreements for use of land or facilities entered into to for purposes of securing the ability to construct the generating facility and associated infrastructure.
9. NERC Compliance
9.1.1. 
Please provide all detailed information regarding the Bidder’s current or planned compliance with any applicable NERC requirements for the proposed project.
� These schedule level descriptions are generally intended to align with the typical practice of project management professionals and be consistent with the guidelines of the Project Management Institute.
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